VEMBERS PRESENT

ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
JO NT MEETI NG
SENATE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON ENERGY
HOUSE RULES STANDI NG COW TTEE
June 10, 2008
10: 04 a. m

SENATE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON ENERGY

Senat or Charlie Huggins, Chair
Senator Bert Stedman, Vice Chair
Senator Kim Elton

Senat or Lyda G een

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senator Lesil MGuire
Senat or Donal d 4 son
Senator Bill W el echowski

Senat or Joe Thonmas
Senat or Fred Dyson

Senat or Thomas
HOUSE RULES

Representative
Representati ve
Representative
Representative
Representati ve

VEMBERS ABSENT

Wagoner

John Coghill, Chair
John Harris

Anna Fai rcl ough
Ral ph Samnuel s

Beth Kerttul a

SENATE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON ENERGY
Senator Gary Stevens
HOUSE RULES
Representative David Guttenberg
OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Senator Bettye Davis

Senator Johnny Ellis
Senator Hollis French

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWMM TTEES -1-

June 10, 2008



Senat or Cene Therriaul t
Represent ati ve Bob Buch
Representative M ke Chenaul t
Representative Harry Crawford
Representati ve Andrea Dol
Representati ve M ke Doogan
Representati ve Bryce Edgnon
Representative Les Gara
Representative Carl Gatto
Representati ve Max G uenberg
Representati ve Lindsey Hol nes
Representati ve Kyl e Johanson
Representative Crai g Johnson
Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative Wes Kel |l er
Representative Mke Kelly
Representative Beth Kerttul a
Representative Bob Lynn
Representati ve Mark Neuman
Representative Kurt O son
Representati ve Jay Ranras
Represent ati ve Bob Roses
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Bill Thomas
Representative Mke Stoltze
Represent ati ve Peggy W1 son

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 3001
"An Act approving issuance of a license by the conmm ssioner of
revenue and the comm ssioner of natural resources to TransCanada
Al aska Conpany, LLC and Foothills Pipe Lines Ltd., jointly as
i censee, under the Al aska Gasline Inducenent Act; and providing
for an effective date."

HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 3001
"An Act approving issuance of a license by the conm ssioner of
revenue and the commi ssioner of natural resources to TransCanada
Al aska Conpany, LLC and Foothills Pipe Lines Ltd., jointly as
i censee, under the Al aska Gasline Inducenent Act; and providing
for an effective date."

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWM TTEES - 2- June 10, 2008



Bl LL: SB3001
SHORT TI TLE: APPROVI NG AG A LI CENSE
SPONSOR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

06/ 03/ 08 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
06/ 03/ 08 (S) ENR

06/ 03/ 08 (S) REPORT ON FI NDI NGS AND DETERM NATI ON
06/ 04/ 08 (S) ENR AT 10: 00 AM TERRY M LLER GYM
06/ 04/ 08 (S) Heard & Hel d

06/ 04/ 08 (S) M NUTE( ENR)

06/ 05/ 08 (S) ENR AT 9: 00 AM TERRY M LLER GYM
06/ 05/ 08 (S) Heard & Hel d

06/ 05/ 08 (S) M NUTE( ENR)

06/ 06/ 08 (S) ENR AT 10: 00 AM TERRY M LLER GYM
06/ 06/ 08 (S) Heard & Hel d

06/ 06/ 08 (S) M NUTE( ENR)

06/ 07/ 08 (S) ENR AT 10: 00 AM TERRY M LLER GYM
06/ 07/ 08 (S) Heard & Hel d

06/ 07/ 08 (S) M NUTE( ENR)

06/ 08/ 08 (S) ENR AT 1: 00 PM TERRY M LLER GYM
06/ 08/ 08 (S) Heard & Hel d

06/ 08/ 08 (S) M NUTE( ENR)

06/ 09/ 08 (S) ENR AT 10: 00 AM TERRY M LLER GYM
06/ 09/ 08 (S) Heard & Hel d

06/ 09/ 08 (S) M NUTE( ENR)

06/ 10/ 08 (S) ENR AT 10: 00 AM TERRY M LLER GYM

BI LL: HB3001
SHORT TITLE: APPROVI NG AG A LI CENSE
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNCR

06/ 03/ 08 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
06/ 03/ 08 (H RLS

06/ 03/ 08 (H VWRI TTEN FI NDI NGS & DETERM NATI ON
06/ 04/ 08 (H RLS AT 9: 00 AM CAPI TOL 120

06/ 04/ 08 (H Heard & Hel d; Subcomm ttee Assigned
06/ 04/ 08 (H M NUTE( RLS)

06/ 04/ 08 (H RLS AT 10: 00 AM TERRY M LLER GYM
06/ 04/ 08 (H Heard & Held

06/ 04/ 08 (H M NUTE( RLS)

06/ 05/ 08 (H RLS AT 9: 00 AM TERRY M LLER GYM
06/ 05/ 08 (H Heard & Held

06/ 05/ 08 (H M NUTE( RLS)

06/ 06/ 08 (H RLS AT 10: 00 AM TERRY M LLER GYM
06/ 06/ 08 (H Heard & Held

06/ 06/ 08 (H M NUTE( RLS)

06/ 07/ 08 (H RLS AT 10: 00 AM TERRY M LLER GYM

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWMM TTEES

- 3- June 10, 2008



06/ 07/ 08 (H) Heard & Hel d

06/ 07/ 08 (H) M NUTE( RLS)

06/ 08/ 08 (H) RLS AT 1: 00 PM TERRY M LLER GYM
06/ 08/ 08 (H) Heard & Hel d

06/ 08/ 08 (H) M NUTE( RLS)

06/ 09/ 08 (H) RLS AT 10: 00 AM TERRY M LLER GYM
06/ 09/ 08 (H) Heard & Hel d

06/ 09/ 08 (H) M NUTE( RLS)

06/ 10/ 08 (H) RLS AT 10: 00 AM TERRY M LLER GYM

W TNESS REG STER

PATRI CK GALVI N, Comnmi ssi oner

Depart nent of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to the proposed
LNG and TransCanada proj ect.

Bl LL SPARGER

Energy Project Consultants, LLC

Col orado Springs, CO

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Presented “LNG Project Costs/ Schedul e (June
9, 2008)” and answered questions related to proposed LNG
proj ects.

KEI TH DODSON

West ney Consul ting G oup

Houst on, TX

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented “LNG Project Costs/ Schedul e (June
9, 2008)” and answered questions related to proposed LNG
proj ects.

ROB FENTON, Managi ng Consul t ant

Gas Strategies

London, WK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to LNG projects.

SCOTT SMTH, Director of Consulting

Ent er pri se Managenent Sol utions

Bl ack & Veatch

Overl and Park, KS

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented “Liquid Natural Gas (LNG NPV
Analysis and Results (June 9, 2008)” and answered questions
related to proposed LNG projects.

DEEPA PODUVAL, Senior Associ ate
Lukens Energy G oup / Black & Veatch Corp.

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWMM TTEES -4- June 10, 2008



Houst on, TX

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented “Liquid Natural Gas (LNG NPV
Anal ysis and Results (June 9, 2008)” and answered questions
related to the anal ysis.

J. TIMOTHY ROVER, Managi ng Director

Gol dman Sachs & Co.

Muni ci pal Fi nance Depart nent

Los Angeles, CA

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented “Financial Review of TransCanada
and Proposal (June 10, 2008)” and answered questions related to
t he anal ysi s.

PAUL BLOOM Vi ce- President

Gol dman Sachs & Co.

Muni ci pal Fi nance Depart nent

Los Angeles, CA

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to the analysis
and docunent “Financial Review of TransCanada and Proposal (June
10, 2008).”

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
CHAIR CHARLIE HUGA NS called the joint neeting of the Senate

Special Commttee on Energy and the House Rules Standing
Commttee to order at 10:09:40 AM

SB3001- APPROVI NG AG A LI CENSE
HB3001- APPROVI NG AG A LI CENSE

Before beginning the hearing CHAIR HUGE NS addressed sone
adm nistrative itens before the body.

10: 11: 01 AM

SENATOR STEDVMAN asked if the My 25, 2005 press release
referring to the Federal Energy Regulatory Commttee (FERC)
should be read into the record for the benefit of those not
present .

CHAIR HUGGA NS replied it could be done later in the day and the
docunent woul d be posted to the website.

10: 11: 34 AM
CHAIR HUGGE NS reviewed agenda changes for the day. He asked
Comm ssioner Galvin to introduce the presenters.

10: 12: 20 AM

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWM TTEES - 5- June 10, 2008



COWM SSI ONER PATRI CK GALVI N, Department of Revenue, said after
yesterday’' s econom c analysis presentation it was brought to his
attention it was difficult to understand sonme of the |iquefied
natural gas (LNG conparisons w thout having sonme expl anation of
how the costs were built up and the schedule crafted. To
address those questions, Bill Sparger who headed up the
technical team and Keith Dobson from Wstney Consulting, the
expert on the issues of costing, were present.

Before their presentation Comm ssi oner Galvin gave sone
background on the selection of LNG cases to be eval uated. He
said when the decision was nade to analyze LNG in addition to
the TransCanada Al aska (TC) application, a choice needed to be
made about what woul d be analyzed. Four different projects were
submitted during the application process. One cane from Little
Susitna in connection with Sinopec. That proposal was a very
| arge capacity line with the objective of buying the gas at the
North Slope, shipping it through a 4.5 bcf/day line, and then
shipping to China. The Port Authority’'s (PA) initial
application was a conbination of two different projects. They
subsequently significantly anmended it to a 2.7 bcf/day project.

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N said when nmaking conparisons the Departnent

was not trying to develop any particular project. The objective
was to franme the economcs of LNG to provide a conparison to the
TC project. Since there was no particular project a range was

established and they | ooked at the applications that canme in for
informati on on what that potential picture would | ook Iike.

10: 16: 00 AM

COW SSI ONER GALVIN said one applicant proposal of 4.5 bcf/day
becanmre one side of the potential range. That range point
provided a good conparison for the TC project because of the
simlar initial capacity ternms. Simlarly, he said the Port
Authority’s (PA) smaller capacity proposal provided a way to
| ook at the potential to ranp up over tine. The Depart nment

wanted to look at that type of project devel opnent plan as well
to conmpare the econom cs and |ikelihood of success criteria.

COM SSI ONER GALVIN explained the technical team was asked,
using those paranmeters and data obtained in applications to
provide economc nodels for LNG projects wusing the sane
assunptions that they used for the TC analysis. He said the
presentations nade today will be the results of that analysis.
The Departnent’s goal was to provide a fair conparison of
potential LNG projects without singling out one in particul ar.

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWM TTEES - 6- June 10, 2008



10: 18: 01 AM

Bl LL SPARCGER, Energy Project Consultants, LLC., referring to
page 2 of the docunent “LNG Project Costs/Schedule (June 9,
2008)” said the three cases Conm ssioner Glvin nentioned are
one simlar to the PA application, one is the TC Y-line option

and one is simlar to the Little Susitna application. He said
it was inportant to note in all three cases, assunptions were
made absent any hard information, and that all of the gas went
to the end of the pipe. This was inportant in cases one and
t hree because both of the applicants assune five hundred mllion
cane off sonmewhere. Case one cannot be directly conpared to the
PA nunbers because it is actually a larger LNG project.

MR. SPARGER said the results of the LNG conparative analysis
show capital costs are higher. He referred to the 4.5 bcf/day
LNG project as an apples to apples conparison to the TC project.
The capital costs are higher driven by the <cost of the
I i quefaction plant which does not exist in the TC application.

10: 20: 00 AM

MR. SPARCGER, referring to page 3 of the docunent, said the
schedules are simlar and restated that “we are not using
anyone’ s cost or anyone’s schedul e’ but devel oped a schedul e of
around ten years. The ten year time period is within four to
five nonths of the PA application and two to three years faster
than Little Susitna’s application.

10: 20: 55 AM

MR. SPARGER said a later start date was assunmed for LNG The
reason was if TC were awarded a license they could start work
imediately. This was not the case for the LNG project as there
is no applicant.

10: 21: 26 AM

MR. SPARGER said the addition of the |iquefaction plant required
a higher cost and schedule risk. The pipeline, even though cut
roughly in half, is no nore conplex or risky than the all Al aska
pi peline. The devel opnent phase was shortened slightly by taking
out the Canadi an regul atory and personations risks. He said the
Gas Treatnment Plant (GIP) and pipeline to Delta Junction were
exactly the sanme regardless of where the gas goes when it gets
to Delta Junction. Additionally, the m scell aneous devel opnent
phases were factored from the TC application with the exception
of the Canadi an regul atory issue.

MR. SPARGER noted the reports contain cost ranging curves for
all of the sub-projects, though will not talk about devel opnment

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWMM TTEES -7- June 10, 2008



GIP or a pipeline to Delta Junction since it was exactly the
sane.

10: 22: 54 AM

MR. SPARCER, referring to page five of the docunent, said in his
opinion the terrain from Delta Junction to the Canadian border
is nore conducive to pipelines. Also, the Trans Al aska Pipeline
System (TAPS) pipeline drives up conplexity and costs going to
Val dez. Addi tionally, Thonpson Pass and Keystone Canyon, have
huge amounts of snow and rain. On a dollar per dianmeter inch
mle basis the costs are a little bit higher. The main driver
is the LNG plant itself.

10: 24: 07 AM

KEI TH DODSON, Westney Consulting G oup, said he has forty years
experience in large capital projects around the world and has
been involved in LNG projects for thirty-five years. He was in
Al aska during the LNG boomin the late 1970’s and was personally
responsible for the design and construction of the worlds
| argest LNG facilities.

MR. DODSON stated no one knows exactly what an LNG to Val dez
would cost in the time frane discussed. Wiat is known is the

range of costs of today’'s plants. Since the first quarter of
2005 costs of LNG facilities have tripled or quadrupled. A
third of the cost increase is due to the inflation of
commodities and other conmponents such as steel and copper. A

| ot of conponents for LNG facilities are not in dollars so the
weakness of the dollar has a big effect on some of the

mul tipliers. Anot her elenment is that contractors in the early
days of LNG construction did not charge risk premuns and | ost
noney. Current risk premuns for contractors and vendors are
exceptional . He said these three factors have conbined to

create a wde array of outcones in LNG projects.

10: 26: 28 AM

M. DODSON said page 6 of the docunent “LNG Project
Cost s/ Schedul e (June 9, 2008)” was a large 4.5 bcf case. The
curve plots the Westney database and two other public sources.
One is a Petrol eum Finance Corporation (PFC) study done for the
State on a 2005 PA submttal. The other is the Norwegi an Snovit
LNG project. He said he wunderstands there are issues wth
Snovit’s Arctic conditions, but he believes the issues are
actually wth the marketplace. Snovit was elimnated from
consi deration because of unexpl ai nable factors. For this
analysis his firm | ooked for a range of costs for LNG facilities
that they have extensive know edge about. Because of their

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWM TTEES - 8- June 10, 2008



knowl edge of these projects they were able to adjust them for a
Val dez | ocati on.

10: 28: 18 AM
MR. DODSON stated there are no | arge negatives associated with a
LNG facility located in Val dez. Val dez has sone downsi des but

al so upsides because of the tenperature of the water. LNG
liquefaction is a cooling process so the efficiencies are
actually increased with cooler water. |In general, Valdez is not

a bad site conpared to nost around the world.

MR. DODSON said the conparison facilities fall into two groups.
Many in the lower quartile have schedul e issues. Nearly every
facility in the conpletion phase is one year behind, adding to
costs. A nunber of LNG projects around the world are done on a
lunmp sum performance guaranteed basis, principally by Japanese

contractors. For exanple the Sakhalin project had huge cost
overruns, none of which were associated with the LNG facility
because Shell had a lunp sum turnkey price from Chiota

Cor por ati on.

10: 29: 50 AM

MR. DODSON performed a sinulation of the outcone to see what the
predictive range would be in the mddle. This was basically
what was used in the net present value (NPV) analysis. He said

“E” on the chart on page six is where the two applications fel
out. The cost in the mddle is only about 25 percent higher than
the two applicants and about 50 percent below the top of the
range. The applications are consistent with current
information; on the |lower end, but not the |owest.

10: 30: 49 AM

MR. SPARGER continued to page 7 (integrated project costs) of
the docunent “LNG Project Costs/Schedule (June 9, 2008).” He
said the probability 50/50 point is about $43 billion which is
about $11 billion dollars nore than the for the TC base case.

MR. SPARGER said the years referred to on page 8 of “LNG Project
Costs and Schedule (June 9, 2008)” are not really relevant; the
duration was the inportant point. The start date would be
whenever an LNG project would start comrercially.

10: 32: 26 AM

MR. SPARGER said the chart on page 9 of the docunment shows the
relationship between all the conponents. He said it was
inmportant to renmenber that gas cannot flow until all three of

the major conmponents, the GIP, the pipeline, and the LNG are

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWM TTEES -9- June 10, 2008



conplete and ready for service. The “schedule” refers to the
overall project schedule including the devel opnent phase. The
LNG and GIP develop in steps, called “trains,” so staggered
steps are seen as the gas cones on stream

10: 33: 15 AM

MR. SPARGER, referring to page 10 of “LNG Project Costs/Schedul e
(June 9, 2008)” said the schedule for the Y-line was different
because it has a different set of assunptions. One assunption is
negotiations are conplete and there is a shorter devel opnent
phase and basically the same construction phase. He believes a
Y-line can be done in seven to eight years as opposed to over
ten years for the larger project.

10: 34: 50 AM
SENATOR WAGONER asked for an explanation of the difference in
the percentage of gas it wll take to operate the LNG project

versus the pipeline project.

10: 35: 21 AM

MR. DODSON replied LNG |liquefaction was a process of conpression
and cool ing. There is sonme shrinkage of material that is used
for refrigerant.

10: 35: 47 AM
MR. SPARCER said GIP was a huge percentage of the fuel in the
overal |l project. The pipeline is much nore efficient from a

fuel standpoint. The LNG plant is very simlar to the GIP. The
fuel usage shrink is close to 10 percent for both facilities.
The pipeline is somewhere around 2 percent.

SENATOR WAGONER cl arified that about 7 percent nore will be |ost
with the LNG project.

MR. SPARGER replied yes.

10: 36: 36 AM

SENATOR DYSON said he believes it unlikely that Congress would
be open to an LNG project that shipped anywhere but to North
America and thought that was evident from visits from the
Federal Energy Regulatory Comm ssion (FERC) nenbers. He asked
if that was a fair assessnent, and about the ability of Wst
Coast receiving facilities to handle the volume that a LNG pl ant
in Al aska m ght produce.

10: 37:16 AM

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWM TTEES - 10- June 10, 2008



MR. DODSON replied there are two issues with the United States
mar ket . First, the heat value in the gas itself has to be
lowered to fit the U S. pipeline system The gas to the Far
East is about 1,033 btu/cubic foot versus the U S. btu of 1,050.
The heat content of the gas has to be reduced either at the
liquefaction site or the re-gasification site and there are
consequences to both. Shipping is required in Jones Act
carriers which are far smaller than the carriers that go to the
Far East. He said probably the |l argest issue was that the West
Coast had plenty of gas. The one termnal currently operating
ships to Arizona and New Mexico because there is no need in
Cal i forni a.

10: 39: 07 AM

SENATOR DYSON said his question had to do with whether gas from
Al aska would be allowed to be exported in the short term \Wen
the senator worked for British Petroleum (BP) during the 1970 s,
any talk about Prudhoe oil going oversees caused the nation to
get its “collective hair on fire.” He believes in the current
political climte Alaska’s gas going oversees would not be
allowed even if it made econom c sense.

COMWM SSIONER  GALVIN  responded t he consul tants did not
participate in the Washington, D.C political dialogue so are
not in a position to coment on that question.

10: 40: 02 AM
CHAIR HUGA NS asked if they are skeptical of a Y-line in a |arge
capacity LNG project.

MR. DODSON answered yes. LNG projects around the world do not
get built in large capacity, but are started in one “train.”
None of the last ten projects around the world are over ten
mllion annual tons because it is very difficult to get
contracts for the off-take. It is nuch easier to get off-take
for five to eight mllion annual tons which is the econom cal
capacity of one train. The focus is normally on getting one
train then going on to nultiple units. He said he was not a
mar ket expert but selling nore than that woul d be chall engi ng.

CHAIR HUGE NS asked for a synopsis of how LNG is evol ving around
t he worl d.

MR. DODSON said a big expansion in capacity has occurred. The

demand for LNG facilities outran the engineering capacity, and
outran the ability to produce conpressors and exchangers and

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWMM TTEES -11- June 10, 2008



ot her conponents. It is now outrunning the world s |abor
supply. LNG facilities are slowng dowmn as a result of cost

shock. But he believes LNG will go forward because there are
many places in the world where LNG makes sense as a fuel. It may
nmove slower and wll go through peaks and valleys, but he
believes it is here to stay. Investnent in re-gas termnals and

LNG facilities would not be noving forward if there was not
evi dence of its future.

10:43: 11 AM
CHAI R HUGE NS asked if “sticker shock” was unique to LNG

MR. DODSON answered yes. Canbri dge Energy Research Associ at es,
the industry body for price indexes, says that all oil and gas
facilities from the first quarter of 2005 to the present are
about two tinmes higher. For LNG costs can be three to four
times higher, a significant increase over other oil and gas
facilities. This is denmand pricing as opposed to inflation.

10: 43: 50 AM

MR. SPARCER added all facilities had gone up, but react
differently depending on what nmarket is driving the prices.
Pipelines are nmore effected by the North Anmerican nmarket,
whereas LNG plants or GIPs are driven nore by the world market.
In the total cost estimation they used 4 percent per year for
the capital as a basis. Though it may seem | ow conpared to the
|ast three or four years, the industry never sustains price
escalations for long periods of tine. Forty years of price
escalation data for industrial type facilities show the peaks
are always foll owed by a fall back

10: 45: 11 AM

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked about the technical possibility of high
grading a gas stream from the tank off-point to tide water so
nore of the gas to liquids (GIL) could be processed into a
hi gher grade fini shed product.

10: 45: 47 AM
MR. DODSON replied a natural gas liquids (NG) extraction
facility could take all the liquids out and is not technically
chal | engi ng.

10: 46: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said he had heard various numbers but knows
the TC line is not 4.5 and wonders how that affects the
conparative risk and benefit. He also asked if shipping costs

were being factored into the LNG pl ant costs.

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWMM TTEES -12- June 10, 2008



MR. SPARGER answered shipping costs are not included in capita
cost figures, but as an operating expense. Shipping costs were
i ncluded in the anal ysis.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked about the relevancy of shipping costs
when | ooking at conparative costs and risks for a LNG pl ant.

10:47: 41 AM

SCOIT SMTH, Black and Veatch, replied there is a capital
expense getting the gas to Valdez and an increnental shipping
cost. In the analysis a capital estinate was nmade to get the
gas to Valdez. They then developed a tariff and added an
additional cost that incorporated the shipping cost, noving the
gas from Valdez to Asia. Shi pping cost was estinated by Gas
Strategies at approximately a dollar in 2020. It was included
as an additional fee paid after incorporating the capital.

10: 48: 24 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked if what was presented previously is
i npacted by the different pipeline sizes.

10: 48: 32 AM

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN replied that the analysis shown was LNG at
the highest NPV to the State and to the producers. The goal was
to show a range. He said a later presentation will show side by
si de conparisons between various pipe sizes and the concl usions
were presented in the report.

CHAIR HUGG NS rem nded all participants to identify thenselves
for the record.

10: 50: 32 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he appreciated the analysis that had
been done. He is convinced the Iine to Canada is nore econonic
than the line to Valdez, but he is concerned about the risks.
When he conpares the two projects many red flags such as first
nation, treaty, and right of way issues surface. These issues
may not energe with a LNG He also sees problenms with the
Canadi an regul atory system and environnmental |awsuits which have
been dealt with in Alaska but not with the Canadi ans. Anot her
unknown is if there is enough gas for the off-take to support
4.5 bcf. There is enough for a LNG line. The LNG project seens
safer because it has less relative risk even though it may not
bring as nuch noney to the State. He thinks this is sonething
to think about when analyzing the relative risk.

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWM TTEES - 13- June 10, 2008



COWM SSI ONER GALVI N responded that Senator Wel echowski had hit
upon the whole design of the analysis which was weighing net
present value, the economc value, and ranking by likelihood of
success. Wat has been presented thus far is the econom c side.
A likelihood of success analysis that is just as conplex has not
been presented yet. Chapter three of the findings report
contains an analysis of the TC application. Conm ssioner Glvin
asked the commttee to report back to himif they see areas in
the anal ysis that need further attention.

10: 55:19 AM

CHAIR HUGA NS said Senator W el echowski brought up a good point.
He also believes it would be valuable for the presenters to
identify their process, tineline, and critical decision points
as they continue through the presentation.

10: 55: 59 AM
REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON asked if any analysis had been done on
of f-take points that m ght be used to get gas to rural Al aska.

COM SSIONER GALVIN said analysis of in-state gas denmand and
potential projects thus far had been done primarily through the
Al aska Natural Gas Devel opnment Authority (ANGDA). They are at
step one of what will be a nmulti-step process of analyzing and
identifying opportunities for Al askans.

10: 58: 47 AM
SENATOR STEDVAN asked what discount factor and nodifications of
that factor were used to adjust for the risk exposure of LNG

10: 59: 00 AM
MR SMTH answered they used the sanme discount factor of 5
per cent .

SENATOR STEDMAN asked how deci sion nmakers are to choose options
if there is no risk adjustnent in the discount rate.

MR SMTH replied there are different ways to think about the

di scount rate. Exposure to Asian prices was exam ned. They
al so | ooked at ranges of costs, schedules, interest rates, and
escal ation factors. All  those factors were explored in

di fferent scenarios to understand how t he NPV woul d vary.

11: 00: 46 AM

COM SSIONER  GALVIN added the discount rate wused was an
i ndi cation of the value of the cash flow com ng off the project.
In order to have a true conparison of the cash flows that would

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWMM TTEES -14- June 10, 2008



be generated by a LNG project versus an overland project, the
same di scount rate nust be used.

SENATOR STEDMAN said he did not agree with Commi ssioner Galvin's
answer and the discount rate should have some conponent parts
added for the producers, for the mdstream participants, and for
the State in order to help select the best project for the
State.

11: 02: 42 AM

COW SSI ONER GALVIN replied the analyses showed the different
di scount rates of the cash flows. He added it is sinple to show
the cash flows for the LNG projects at any discount rate and
conpare those to an overland project at any discount rate. The
statute required a NPV analysis with five different discount
rates which are in the report and subject to conparison. He
said he is willing to discuss another discount rate but does not
believe different rates for an overland project and LNG is a
fair conparison

11: 03: 48 AM

SENATOR STEDVAN said there is a large anount of data to review
in the reports and asked if there was a section covering
di scount rates and what was considered in some of the risk
factors.

MR SMTH replied they used different discount rates for the
producers and the State, than for the TC/ LNG project devel oper
They elected to keep the rates consistent between scenarios to

mnimze the conparative inpacts. Instead they |ooked at
scenario analysis to highlight the different risks of the
di fferent projects. The discount rates ranged from 2 to 8
percent so they used 5 percent as the base. In the analysis

they started with the cash flows generated by the project, which
are significant whether it be a LNG or an overland route, and
then |looked at what the inplications are associated wth
di scounting those cash flows to current dollars. The next step
was understanding the inplications of different discount rates.
He believes it is easier to understand and highlight the risk of
different projects by looking at the factors that lead to a
hi gher or |lower cash flow versus trying to enbed the risk in the
di scount rate itself. That was the process used to performthe
anal ysi s.

11: 06: 28 AM
SENATOR STEDVAN said he had a hard tine understanding how the
same discount rate applied under substantially different risk

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWM TTEES -15- June 10, 2008



par amet er s. There are different risk conmponents and capital
requirenents in LNG He agreed with the conclusion that LNG was
sonething radically different but found it difficult to conpare
the cash flow benefits and risk of the two projects.

11: 08: 06 AM

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N said one nethod of financial analysis was to
use a discount rate as an indication of risk tolerance or
expect ation. In this analysis a different nethod was used
because there are so many different risk factors involved.
Rat her than use the discount rate to analyze the conparative
risks the cash flow was risked. The analysis shows the
potential range of the ultinmate cash flow and then discounts it
at the sane rate between the projects so the relative risks of
each factor between the two projects can be conpar ed.

11: 09: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN asked if he was correctly interpreting
that the main pipeline would be running in 2018 and LNG exports
woul d be going out of Valdez in 2022 or 2023.

MR. SPARGER answered the years indicated on the chart did not
matter nuch because it depends on when the expansion starts or

when the LNG option of the Y-line starts. It could start as
early as 2012, but the main project has to be far along in the
proj ect devel opnment phase before the LNG could start. A start

date prior to 2012 is probably not feasible.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN said he was glad to hear that because that
would put the LNG plant out twelve to thirteen years. He
remenbered a PA proposal that said a line could be up and
running in six to seven years and hopes a plan will continue to
nove forward.

MR. SPARCER replied he did not have any information that showed
Six to seven years. Their analysis says a stand alone LNG
project as proposed by the PA is ten years including the
devel opnment phase. The devel opnment phase is a lengthy process
that requires making the business deal, doing the open season,
and all the regulatory approvals. In the TC schedule, it takes
five and half years. The PA schedul e was shortened sonewhat but
not three or four years.

11:14: 11 AM
REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN asked if a spur line to Valdez would be a
conpeting project.

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWM TTEES - 16- June 10, 2008



COM SSI ONER GALVIN replied a spur line off the TC line would
not conpete because it would be comng off of the main [ine. The
question is if the TC project would be set aside and attention
devoted to a LNG project. Based on the analysis he does not
believe that is in the State’s interest. The start date of the
expansi on could be noved back four years and end up with the Y-
line in place at the same tine, with first gas comng in the
same tine as the overland project. He said it was a matter of
bei ng ready when the opportunity conmes about.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN was happy to hear that the projects would
not conpete.

11:16: 00 AM
REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN asked if there was any way to get gas from
the North Slope to Al askans any sooner.

COMM SSI ONER GALVIN replied that was related to the idea of a
bullet line. Wth a smaller line there are fewer GIP timng
issues and smaller pipe can be put in place quicker. The
decision is about how the State wants to assist in the econom cs
by providing additional noney that would not have to be recouped
t hrough the rate payer.

CHAIR HUGA NS asked if it was still supportable, based on the
assunptions of volune available, if it was done concurrently.

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N answered what was anal yzed was on the nmain
line comng off the existing reserves. The main line can be
built with the known reserves. Expanding to 2 bcf/day wll
require finding nore reserves between now and then. Different
opinions exist on the Ilikelihood of finding nore reserves.
Current activity is targeting gas and is going on now in areas
that is both gas and oil prone. The | evel of early success in
those operations will lead to the potential for first gas to
i nclude what is considered today to be new gas. He believes the
potential exists and is just a matter of when explorations begin
and how successful the initial investnments are going to be.

11: 18: 54 AM
CHAIR HUGA NS said investnents would be based on new di scoveri es
and new producti on.

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N agr eed.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN reiterated that because the projects can
work in parallel, he hoped it was a long term goal of the State

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWMM TTEES -17- June 10, 2008



to assist the Devel opment Authority and the Pipeline Authority
to work towards those goals.

COWMM SSI ONER GALVI N agreed when tal king about lines off the main
l'ine.

11:19: 14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked if all the reference points on
page 6 of “LNG Project Costs/Schedule (June 9, 2008)” were for
known LNG proj ects.

MR. DODSON answer ed yes.
REPRESENTATI VE FAlI RCLOUGH asked for dates of the projects.
MR. DODSON replied they are fromthe |ast ten years.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH commented that the chart shows a broad
cost escal ati on range.

MR. DODSON replied LNG projects do not finish every year, nost
of them being seven or eight year projects.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked for a reference date in the
poi nts shown on the chart. She said she did not question the
projects were expensive. But, she said, tine does nmatter in
terms of cost investnents because of a prior statenment nmade
about historical high costs foll owed by | ows.

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN said the points plotted on the chart were a
result of personal project know edge. The reason they were
indicated in letters is because they are based on proprietary
informati on that cannot be divul ged.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH said she appreciated that but is sure
sonmeone fromthe adm nistration asked for verification

MR. DODSON said there are three verifiable points on the chart.
One is (indiscernible), one is Snovit, and the third is the Port
Aut hority represented by “FE

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH said she does not think the chart is
relevant if she cannot confirm the costs are accurate to what
was bei ng conpar ed.

11:23:29 AM

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWM TTEES - 18- June 10, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked how long the cost point stayed
high in the forty year historical period of high construction
costs.

MR. SPARCGER replied that information was in the technical

findings report. It goes up for two or three years historically
and then falls. Sonetines it has gone through decades of
fl at ness. The scatter is worse now than in the last ten to
fifteen years. He said the types of increases seen over the

| ast few years were not historically sustainable.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH said for the last three to four years

construction costs had gone up by 30 percent annually. She
beli eves she just heard the cycles had been in shorter segnents.
She is trying to determne how far costs will drop in the future

when higher construction increases for a longer period of tinme
are already occurring.

MR. SPARGER replied they were not saying the prices were going
to drop. They are saying the 2007/2008 historical high point

will escalate 4 percent. They are not trying to predict how far
it wll drop when it drops, but saying it cannot sustain twenty-
five, thirty, or even 10 percent on a historical basis. Thi s

applies to any project of any type to nove gas off the North
Sl ope. He said all projects face the sanme issue of fluctuating
capital costs.

REPRESENTATI VE  FAI RCLOUGH asked if it was fair to say
construction cost increases were higher and stayed higher |onger
than any other period of tinme in the forty years that were
exam ned.

MR. SPARCER replied there could be sone but he could not say for
sure.

11: 26: 30 AM
REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked what type of LNG product, dry or
liquid, the Asian market typically buys.

ROB VENTON, Gas Strategies, answered the gas typically bought in
the United States was dry, neaning the natural gas liquid
conponents of the nethane had generally been taken out,
resulting in a |lower btu content. Asian nmarket LNG is high btu,
meani ng the natural gas liquids are generally left in.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked if the Asian nmnarkets were also
buyi ng the dry product.

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWM TTEES -19- June 10, 2008



MR. VENTON replied they buy small quantities of |ow btu LNG when
they need it, but have to add back one of the conponents,
usual | y propane, before they can use it.

11: 28: 32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked if the LNG projects presented on
page 6 of “LNG Project Costs/Schedule (June 9, 2008)” were
produci ng different types of gas.

MR. SPARGER said he did not know but woul d get the answer.

11:29: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if the TC and LNG projects could be
done at the sane time with the State's limted workforce. She
does not know if there is an answer to her question but is
sonet hing that needs to be consi dered.

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN agreed the capacity to do both at the sane
tinme was necessary and Comm ssioner Bishop of the Departnent of
Labor was |ooking at the question. There is some concern anpong
i ndustry personnel that sinultaneous construction of the
McKenzie and TC project is going to be very difficult with the

exi sting workforce. People are hoping the relative timng of
the two projects will enable workers to transfer fromone to the
other. He said it would also be necessary to | ook at the inpact

of a potential Y-line project.

11: 32: 03 AM

SENATOR FRENCH asked for clarification of the State’'s ability to
assist wth royalties or taxes wunder the Alaska Gasline
| nducenent Act (AG A).

COW SSI ONER GALVI N responded under AG A the State cannot assi st

with tax and royalties on a conpeting project. The TC
application says they will build the |ine wherever the custoners
will Dbe. In that regard it would be the sanme project, just
going to a different end point and the State could assist in the
LNG conponent. It would not be a conpeting project because a

different project sponsor would not be trying to get the gas
fromthe North Slope away fromthe TC project.

SENATOR FRENCH asked how far “assistance” goes and if that would

include sonething along the lines of the State buying or
building a LNG facility in Val dez.

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWM TTEES - 20- June 10, 2008



COMM SSI ONER GALVI N replied he would get back later with further
i nformati on on that question.

11: 35: 06 AM

SENATOR STEDVAN said page 14 of Black & Veatch’s “NPV Anal ysis
Report” [May 22, 2008], Section 2.0 Net Present Value Mdeling
bjective, referred to the nethodology used to deal with the
present value and anticipated cash flows to the State from the
project proposals wusing various factors. The docunent also
states Black and Veatch’s role was to perform the AGA NPV
anal ysi s. Senator Stedman asked how the process worked between
the admi nistration and Bl ack and Veatch and how to interpret the
data on page fourteen.

MR SMTH replied that page 14 restates A A requirenents and
Bl ack and Veatch’s role which was to do the analysis, understand
the NPV, understand sensitivity to the NPV, understand risks of
how those cash flows nay vary and provide that information to
the State, so they could form their opinion. Bl ack and Veatch
IS not advocating one project over another.

SENATOR STEDVAN said his question can be addressed | ater because
it is a different project outside of AQdA He is struggling
with the concept of the sane discount rate for the State cash
flows when there are huge risk differences between the two
proj ects.

11:39: 53 AM

COMM SSI ONER GALVI N said the essence of the analysis was | ooking
at the likelihood of success and was done for both the TC
project and for a generic LNG project. In the NPV analysis

simlar overlapping issues exist dealing with risks and the
assessnent of those risks affecting the cash flow This analysis
did not make specific assunption on price, cost escalation, or
on cost factors, everything was ranged. The range that results
fromthe cash flows is reflected in the reports. The final step
was taking those cash flows and creating a net present value
nunber . The discount rate is dependent upon a nunber of
different factors. He said it was inportant to | ook at the use
of risk in the analysis and the relationship of how that risk
changes the outconmes and which of the “knobs were turned” based
on that risk. In this analysis they decided to “turn a whole
bunch of knobs” based upon risk rather than just one in the
di scount rate.

11:42:20 AM

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWMM TTEES -21- June 10, 2008



CHAIR HUGGA NS asked if there were any concluding comments from
the presenter on LNG Hearing none, the chair asked the
panelists to continue their presentations.

11:42: 33 AM

MR SMTH, continued the presentations starting on page 7 of
Bl ack and Veatch docunent “Liquid Natural Gas (LNG NPV Anal ysis
and Results” (June 9, 2008). He said, a start date was
estimated for a Y-line. It would be a 4.5 bcf/day project to
Canada, starting in 2020, and a 2 bcf/day LNG project to Val dez,
starting in 2025. The chart shows how the cash flows start off
and change through tinme and are shown in annualized dollars in
any given year. Oher information shown on the chart is how the
total of all the cash flows are aggregated for the different
parties. NPV is not shown, just the total dollars and what has

been coll ected. The graph shows the State is collecting the
| argest share, 43 percent of all the cash, whereas TC is
collecting 14 percent and the producers 23 percent. To

calculate the NPV, the 2045 dollars are converted into 2008
dollars to make a relative conparison

11:46: 00 AM

DEEPA PODUVAL, Black and Veatch, reiterated cash flows were
determ ned by adding up whatever was generated in 2020 through
2022 without applying any discounting. The State generates $353
billion dollars of total cash flow during the 25 year analysis
peri od. She said $353 billion dollars in the future was not
worth the sane today so it was discounted using a rate of 5
percent each year which equates to the $86 billion dollars shown
on page 8 of “Liquid Natural Gas (LNG NPV Analysis and Results”
(June 9, 2008) for the 6.5 bcf/day Y-line. Simlarly, the total
cash flows generated for each of the other LNG projects
presented on the table were discounted to what they would be
worth in 2008. The NPV for these different projects ranges from
about $29 billion dollars for the 2.7 bcf/day LNG to $48
billion dollars for the 4.5 bcf/day LNG As she nentioned on
June 9, the Y-line assuned the 4.5 bcf/day project took the gas
to AECO Hub. She said adding the 2 bcf LNG project to that
configuration adds about $20 billion dollars in additional NPV
to the State. The direct conparison is not shown on the chart
but the 4.5 bcf/day project to AECO alone has an NPV to the
State of $66 billion dollars. She said these projects were
profitable by any standards, just not as profitable as the
pi pel i ne project.

11:48:42 AM

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWM TTEES -22- June 10, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE SAMUJELS asked if it was assunmed everything went
into production on the sanme day when NPV nunbers were run.

M5. PODUVAL answered no, those figures assumed the 4.5 bcf/day
project started in 2020 and the LNG line started in 2025. | f
production from the LNG line started in 2020, as is possible,
then the NPVs woul d be higher than what is shown.

11:49: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS asked how to get sonmebody wlling to
invest in the LNG line when 2 bcf of gas is needed to pay for
it.

11:50: 44 AM
M5. PODUVAL believes it will be driven by conmercial interests.

11:51: 24 AM

MR. SM TH added devel oping a pipeline or a LNG project has a | ot
of variables. They made a sinplifying assunption of a 2 bcf
start up in their analysis because it is inpossible to evaluate
every scenario that could be inmgined. There are other
scenarios to consider such as starting at 1 bcf/day and ranping
up fromthere.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS asked if nunmbers were run for 1 bcf/day.
He said nobody will sit on their gas until it is economcally
viable to go to LNG

11:53: 31 AM
COWM SSI ONER GALVIN replied the opportunity existed to analyze
the economcs of a potential Y-line. Wen |ooking strictly at

the economcs of an increnental increase of a l|arge overland
project it will be nore economcal to send gas down that I|ine
than it will be to create a new LNG project strictly because of

the costs. However, there is potential that other producers may
be discovering gas and ultimately decide where they want their
gas to go in the market. They nmay have strategic reasons to
want to have LNG on the Pacific Basin and that may be much nore
val uable than the strict economcs of where the gas from the
North Slope will ultimately get the highest return. He said an
opportunity existed for a Y-line to provide access to an
attractive market to a producer for strategic reasons.

11:55:45 AM
REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS agreed the market place would take over
but the mnute a big line gets built, it becomes problematic to

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWM TTEES - 23- June 10, 2008



build a conpetitive pipeline unless you have a |large quantity of
gas at one tine.

11:57: 09 AM

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N sai d because LNG is constructed in “trains,”
meani ng you construct an entire new processing facility with its
full capacity one chunk at a time, increnmental expansion for a
LNG project would be in bigger chunks than it would be with just
a pipeline to nmarket. He said Representative Samuels is
alluding to the fact that for any LNG project, whether it is the
initial run of a Y-line or an expansion of an LNG project
di scovering enough gas is needed to justify the initial run of
t hat expansion. He is concerned about building an overland route
off a LNG project for nmuch the sane reason. He said a potenti al
constraint exists on the desire for exploration because of the
risk that a significantly larger volunme will need to be found to
get the gas to market. He believes given the potential of the
North Slope, particularly since it is under-explored as has been
i ndicated by the geologists, the opportunity is best now for a
LNG project as a Y-line off the main line, when new exploration
and larger finds are |ikely.

12: 00: 13 PM

SENATOR STEDVMAN asked how the 20 percent capital credit and
capital credits applicable to the gas treatnment plant were
handl ed when cal cul ating the revenue stream

MR SMTH replied they did deal with all the estimtes of
capital costs from GIP all the way through to the I|iquefaction
facility. He said associated costs were converted into a tariff
assumng simlar type structures for an overland project. They
mrrored what TC proposed to try to mnimze any differences.

COMM SSI ONER GALVIN clarified that he thought Senator Stednman
was referring to production tax credits associated with upstream
production <costs and wanted to insure those had Dbeen
incorporated into the tax flow anal ysis.

M5. PODUVAL said the capital cost credits were incorporated in
the estimation of the production tax. They recognized the
capital expenditure associated with upstream exploration and
devel opment activities would be subsidized by the State through
| ower production taxes.

SENATOR STEDMAN said he thought the analysis showed capital

expenditures growing by five or 6 percent a year. He asked the
presenters to address the dollars being |ooked at over the next

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWMM TTEES - 24- June 10, 2008



twenty vyears because of the desire to get nore capita
investnment into the basin to increase oil production.

M5. PODUVAL replied capital expenditures for the gas treatnent
pl ant were not considered as upstream capital costs that would
earn credit from an ACES (Alaska’'s Cear and Equitable Share)
per specti ve.

12: 03: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said he started listening to these
anal yses in 2001 and a |lot of estimtes were nmade about what the
future would hol d. He said he |earned over the years that al

t he anal yses were wong. He expressed the need to | ook ahead for
future generations, think about all possibilities, and keep al
opti ons open.

12: 06: 27 PM
CHAIR HUGGA NS said there appeared to be an air of certainty and
he did not have that confidence.

12: 06: 45 PM
REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES asked what the NPV of an expanded overl and
route woul d be.

M5. PODUVAL answered that information is in the report and she
would find it and report back |ater.

12: 07: 54 PM
REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS asked what the billings with Black and
Veat ch had been so far.

COM SSIONER GALVIN replied he did not have that information
wi th himand would have to report back |ater.

12: 09: 11 PM
CHAI R HUGE NS announced an at ease until 1:30pm

1:42:15 PM
CHAIR HUGG NS called the neeting back to order at 1:42pm The
panel continued with their presentation.

1:42: 57 PM

M5. PODUVAL continued with her presentation of “Liquid Natura
Gas (LNG NPV Analysis and Results” (June 9, 2008). She said
the NPV to the State and producers was evaluated under a
baseline LNG price assunption, but Gas Strategies also provided
a high and | ow LNG scenario to risk the NPVs. \Wen applying the

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWM TTEES - 25- June 10, 2008



Gas Strategies price assunptions to the 4.5 bcf/day LNG project,
the NPVs to the State varied from about $13 billion to $61

billion dollars (page 9). Producer NPVs discounted at 15
percent vary between about $3 billion dollars to a negative $1.8
billion dollars. The relationship between gas and oil prices

was al so evaluated to see how high oil prices would have to be
relative to gas to nake an LNG project nore desirable to AECO
than an overl and project.

1:45: 38 PM
MR SMTH said price was a |arge conponent when assessing the
different risks of the project. Wth LNG there are nore

dynamics for estimating price, such as the price of the gas
delivered in Asia. Another factor is the relative conparison to
t he donestic price. He said they |ooked at those relationships
historically and what happened when they changed. Page 10 of
“Liquid Natural Gas (LNG NPV Analysis and Results” (June 9,
2008) shows the price difference between crude oil and natural
gas at Henry Hub. Since 2000, crude oil is eight tines the gas
price. Also a potentially higher ratio of crude oil to gas
prices occurs when crude is at $125 to $130 dollars a barrel.

1:48:29 PM
MR. SM TH said the basic analysis was to test the sensitivity to
different ratios of oil prices to gas. They found sustained

high oil prices over the entire project period are necessary,
starting in 2008 and all the way through to 2045. He said given
Gas Strategies forecast, price ratios had to be fairly high
conpared to what has been seen historically, for LNG to be of
hi gher profitability relative to the overland route.

MR SMTH said narket performance would need to be different
along wth different behaviors within the Asian LNG market. The
Gas Strategies report generated a tie of prices between
continents. Under the base case LNG price forecast projected by
Gas Strategies, the ratio needs to be 10/1 or higher for the
State to benefit from a LNG project. For the producers it is
al nrost 12/1 or higher depending on the discount rate. Prices
need to be at the top end of what has been seen historically for
the parties to benefit given these price relationships. The
price differential between Asia and the United States has to be
slightly higher than $6 dollars for LNG to be nore favorable
than an overland route because of the capital cost difference.

CHAIR HUGA NS asked if there were questions from the committee.
Hearing none the commttee noved on to the next agenda item

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWM TTEES - 26- June 10, 2008



1:52: 38 PM

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN said a question was asked a few days ago
about a section of the Request for Application (RFA) regarding
“parol e evi dence” and its relationship to pot enti al
interpretations of the license. As background, he said, the
license was a conbination of nultiple docunents. In the history
of contract |law certain practices were devel oped that courts use
to interpret contracts. One practice is the courts wll |ook at
the docunent itself for interpretation, not at what is called
“parol e evidence.” Parole evidence consists of other agreenents
outside of the contract itself that conflict with or add to the
provisions of the contract. There have been a nunber of
exceptions that have evolved over tine. One exception is that
parol e evidence can be used when there is anbiguity in the
contract or something needs to be explained. He said there had
been courts that found outside evidence would not be allowed,
only applies when a wholly integrated contract exists; where all
the docunments are captured in one nenorialization of the
agreement . Because of that finding |lawers starting inserting
merger clauses into agreenents. A nmerger clause states the
entire agreenent is an integrated docunent. Sonme go farther and
say no parole evidence wll be allowed. This clause is now
found in the fine print of many docunents.

1: 54: 15 PM
COW SSI ONER GALVIN said concerns had been voiced that because
the Jlicense constitutes the statute, the RFA, and the

application, and aspects of the application particularly reflect
expectations of TC, that could be interpreted in the future as
being an additional condition. He said TC stated explicitly
that was not their intent. It would take a court to find the
license is uncertain or anbiguous. If this occurred the court
would then | ook for additional evidence and at that point the
testi nony becones relevant. He believes the |anguage of the
application and license is clear.

1:58:22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if the issue could be resol ved by
including a clause that says “the docunent shall be construed in
favor of the State and against the |essee” rather than go to
trial.

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N answered that had been done in the case of
the AG A license. Further, the license says if there is any
conflict, the statute is the clearest statenent of the State's
coonmitnments and obligations, followed by the RFA then the

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWMM TTEES -27- June 10, 2008



appl i cation. The State’s declaration of what the agreenent is
ends up controlling any issue.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if under the current clause the
State’s interpretation would prevail.

COMWM SSI ONER GALVIN said the license itself, and the RFA nade
clear the statute controls, followed by the RFA, and finally the
appl i cation.

2:01:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said he was the one who raised the
guestion about the nature of the license. Comm ssioner Glvin's
expl anati on nmakes sense that should ternms be disputed a court
would look at the testinony to solve the problem He is
concerned anbiguity still exists.

COWMM SSI ONER GALVI N suggested | ooking at the transcript fromthe
previ ous testinony. Hs recollection was that he clearly
articulated the State did not have to do anything nore than what
was obligated in the statute and the RFA He recalled M.
Pal mer was asked if he agreed with that assessnent, and he said
yes. He also recalled during M. Palnmer’s presentation he said
he would expect the State to do a nunber of different things
according to the State's sovereign authorities. They were asked
if they would attenpt to get out of the license obligations if
the State did not do those things. M. Palnmer said no.
Comm ssioner Galvin believes the record is extrenely clear.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER asked if it would be prudent for the State
to define the roles and agreenent anong the parties in a binding
contractual relationship.

COW SSIONER  GALVIN answered the contract established the
obl i gati ons. Once the license is issued obligations of the
parties wll be «clearly stated. He also observed that
regardl ess of what was done, someone nmy perceive anbiguity. He
bel i eves the substance of the license and the obligations of the
parties are clear.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER replied he could see the sane facts and
conme to different conclusions. He thinks the lack of a defined
docurment will create anmbiguities rather than resolve them

COW SSI ONER GALVI N suggested addressing particular anbiguities
t hat Representative Hawker perceives.

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWM TTEES - 28- June 10, 2008



2:07:34 PM
REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether the  bullet line would
conflict wwth the TC agreenent.

2:08:42 PM

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N said the question of what wll constitute a
conflicting project was not a question of anbiguity in the
license itself. There is nothing in the TC application that
woul d informthat particul ar decision.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES said he would |ike an answer to his
guestion before naking a decision because it was inportant to
those who had concerns about in-state gas. He hopes for an
answer fromthe admnistration as well as TC so there is clarity
bet ween the parti es.

COW SSI ONER GALVI N agreed that clarity on this issue was needed
before a vote and he would obtain the information requested.

2:11:19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said the parole evidence rule did not have
anything to do wth the disputes that will cone up about the
statutory terns in AQA It will involve interpretation of
contract ternms. He does not share Representative Roses’ concern
that the statute is anbiguous. He accepts the interpretation

that there is no danger, but suggests it would not hurt to have
a menorandum of understanding (MOU) to address the concerns of
t hose who believe the statutory provision is anbi guous.

2:13:17 PM
COMM SSIONER  GALVIN replied the technical team would get
t oget her and get back to the commttee.

2:13:28 PM

SENATOR FRENCH sai d what was being expressed was a “healthy dose
of Al askan skepticism” One anbiguity he sees in the Ilicense
says “including licensee commtnents and all responses to
additional information requests.” Wen he read that statenent
he thought every exchange between the Legislative Budget and
Audit Committee (LB&A) and TC needed to be included. He said an
adm nistration official said LB&A responses did not count which
did not seem clear in the license. He also thinks the record
needs to be supplenmented by posing sonme questions to a TC
representative about their interpretation of what a conpeting
project is and what it neans to offer assistance. He believes
there is still plenty of time to do this.

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWM TTEES - 29- June 10, 2008



2:16: 20 PM
COWMM SSI ONER GALVI N replied he appreciated the concerns and w ||
try to provide responses to perceived anbiguities.

2:16: 56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER sai d he shared Senator French’s concerns
He has been involved in many business contract interpretations
and disputes over what sonething neant. He asked if soneone
could open up the whole body of debate that led to the creation
of the AQ A statute.

COM SSI ONER GALVIN replied those kinds of questions could not
be conpletely avoided. There will be a nmultitude of options for
dealing with what is found in the analysis of the project. He
agrees that further discussion is necessary so the body is
confortable wth the outcone.

2:19:57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said his real concern was wth the
guestions that would arise in the future that are beyond
contenpl ati on today.

COMM SSI ONER GALVIN replied the relationship established through
this license is the end result of a conpetitive process put into
place with passage of AGA Most people think everything has
been covered by the tine a contract is signed. He said 80 to 90
percent of contracts probably go through their whole term
w t hout di spute. Sone end up being disputed because there was
not enough work done up front or because tinmes change and people
want to interpret things differently.

2:23:25 PM

SENATOR MCGUI RE said this was one of the largest projects in the
world and she does not think things can be left to conjecture.
She is particularly concerned about any projects that fal
outside of what is permtted by TC. She suggested the Judiciary
Commttee could highlight areas of concern and a MM could
menorialize intent.

2:25:52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG conmment ed that significant concerns had
been expressed and he believed the contract nust be witten as
clearly and conci sely as possi bl e.

COW SSIONER GALVIN stated he thought care needed to be taken

about how this discussion was being characterized. He does not
want to give the public or the Legislature the inpression that

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWM TTEES - 30- June 10, 2008



the docunment is anmbiguous or full of uncertainties. The
adm nistration thinks the |icense docunents are clear and they
have not heard a legal opinion that differs. Senat or French
rai sed an issue regarding what docunents were included in the
interpretation of the words of the license. The adm nistration

will provide information why they believe it is docunents
l[imted to interactions between the adm nistration and TC He
will continue to work towards increasing confidence in the

docunent by clarifying | anguage relating to conpeting projects.

2:29: 38 PM
CHAI R HUGA NS asked if Comm ssioner Glvin could satisfy sone of
the concerns stated so when people vote they know what they're
voting for.

COW SSI ONER GALVIN replied “yes sir we will.”

2:30:31 PM

SENATOR MCGUIRE said the concern she had was by granting the
license they are obligating the State to terns that need to be
cl ear.

2:31:14 PM
REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN asked how many options were available to
themw thin the next sixty days.

CHAIR HUGGE NS replied he was asking for renedies that were
reasonably available within the current tinme frane.

2:32:47 PM
REPRESENTATI VE KELLY said he would like to know whether there
were legitimte |egal concerns about going to a contract.

2:34: 33 PM

CHAIR HUGA NS asked if there were further questions or comrents.
Hearing none he proceeded to agenda item five, Net Present Val ue
(NPV) Anal ysi s.

2:35:53 PM

CHAIR HUGA NS cal l ed a brief at ease.

2:36:37 PM

COM SSIONER  GALVIN introduced the presenters for the next
agenda item NPV and |ikelihood of success of the TC

appl i cation.

2:39: 24 PM

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWM TTEES - 31- June 10, 2008



TIM ROMER, Managing Director, Goldnman Sachs, Los Angeles,
introduced the associates working on the project and gave a
summary of the conpany’s role in the project. They were asked
to assess the proposal from the standpoint of financing. Their
findings are outlined in “Financial Review of TransCanada and
Proposal ” (June 10, 2008)).

CHAIR HUGA NS asked if Goldman Sachs had any previous experience
with the State on this gas |line project.

PAUL BLOOM Vice President, Goldman Sachs, said the conpany had
a long history working with the State on a variety of natters
and had been informally consulted by various admnistrations on
the gas |ine.

2:41: 42 PM
MR. ROVER said their task was to ook at the financial viability
of the project. They considered it from two perspectives.

First, given the nature of the project if it could be financed
and the capital raised in the tineline needed to build the
proj ect . Second, if TC has the capacity to neet the financial
obligations involved with the project and AG A ol dman Sachs
concluded there are very strong econonmic underpinnings to the
project and after looking at a large nunber of factors they
believe the project is financeable. Additionally, for a project
of this size, ongoing considerations need to be nmanaged through
time.

2:43: 57 PM

MR. ROVER, referring to page 3 of the docunent, said shipping
comm tnents, |oan guarantees, an overall strong package offered
to the lenders, and a cooperative mnarket were necessary
conponents for success. They believe the project can be financed
gi ven these consi derations.

2:44: 24 PM
CHAIR HUGE NS asked about wuse of the term “cost overrun
surcharge.”

MR. ROMER said his understanding of the tariff structure was if
there was a cost overrun to the project it would be built into
the tariff on a “go forward” basis.

MR. BLOOM said the federally guaranteed cost overrun loan laid
out in the TC proposal would be a | oan guaranteed by the federal
government and repaid through a surcharge nechanism in the
tariffs.

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWM TTEES - 32- June 10, 2008



2:45: 21 PM
CHAI R HUGE NS asked what the nmechani sm for paying overruns would
be if a federal guarantee was not in place.

MR. ROMER replied the legislation put in place for the federa
guarantee for cost overruns was in conpliance.

COMM SSI ONER GALVIN clarified that nothing suggested the federa
| oan guarantee was going to be expanded or the anpunt of the
| oan guarantee was going to be raised by Congress. The question
is whether they will hold off on exercising the full extent of
the loan guarantee in their initial financing and reserve a
certain amount in order to have a |ower cost overrun debt cost.
If the cost overrun use of the |oan guarantee is not in place
overall project financing shifts and use of the |oan guarantee
for initial financing is nore than what is being assuned. He
said it actually makes that financing nore attractive.

MR. ROVER agrees with Conm ssioner Galvin's statenent. If there
is a cost overrun there nust be access to capital to pay for it.
An effective use of the federal |oan guarantee is to wthhold
some of it in that circumnstance.

SENATOR STEDVAN asked the presenters to expand on the risk
shifting dealing with cost overruns.

2:48: 05 PM
MR. ROVER replied he was not sure what risk shifting was being
referred to.

SCOIT SMTH, Black & Veatch, said Black and Veatch |ooked at a
tariff for the pipeline with and w thout cost overruns. For a
4.5 bcf pipeline to AECO and a 20 percent increase in costs, the
tariff went from $4.73 to $5.35 if the loan guarantee was in
pl ace. If not, the tariff would go twenty cents higher to
$5.53. Scenarios were considered associated with cost increases
with and wthout the loan guarantee to understand the
inplications should it not be approved by the federal
gover nnment . They also |ooked at NPV benefits associated wth
t he | oan guar ant ee.

2:49: 54 PM

COM SSIONER GALVIN said the term “risk shifting” associated
wWith cost overruns was a nechani sm proposed by TC to shift sone
of the risk borne by the shippers onto the pipeline by having it
be conpl etely debt financed.

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWM TTEES - 33- June 10, 2008



SENATOR STEDMAN noted the closing paragraph on page 169 [of the
May 22, 2008 NPV Analysis] says “If the U S. |oan guarantee were
not included in the proposal, TransCanada’'s net present value
would increase significantly with cost overruns....” He said
there were winners and losers as far as who would benefit from
the present value of the cash flows and it was necessary to be
cl ear about the scenarios and who benefits.

2:51:21 PM

COWM SSI ONER  GALVI N agr eed. He said TC was proposing to
actually lower their NPV by using the federal |oan guarantee.
This is the risk shifting referred to in the docunent and is
val ue added provided by TC s proposal that the State would not
ot herwi se receive.

2:51: 48 PM
CHAIR HUGE NS asked for an overview of the federal | oan
guar ant ee par anet ers.

MR. ROVER answered the federal |oan guarantee was a powerful and
beneficial feature to this project and helped from a nunber of
perspectives. One benefit is the ability to use the | ower cost
debt available and to use it as a nechanismto cover overruns on
a much | ower cost basis. He said the law was clear about the
Department of Energy (DOE) governing and issuing the guarantee
and a variety of conditions were set forth for conpliance.
There are limtations of how nuch nom nal dollar anmount and how
much as a percent of the project the | oan guarantee can cover.

2:53:58 PM

CHAIR HUGA NS said the term “bridge shipping” with federal |oan
guarantees had energed and he asked for thoughts about that
concept .

MR. BLOOM said they assuned the bridge shipper concept would not
be inplemented and ignored it in the analysis. They understood
it to be conpletely separate fromthe | oan guarant ee.

CHAIR HUGGA NS asked if M. Roner and Comm ssioner Glvin could
clarify any discussions about federal |oan guarantees that they
may have participated in.

VR. ROVER said Goldman Sachs |looked at what was in the

legislation and did not participate in any specific mneetings
wi th the governnent on | oan guarant ees.

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWM TTEES - 34- June 10, 2008



COM SSIONER GALVIN replied the admnistration did not
participate in any discussions regarding the “bridge shipper”
idea. The administration has talked a great deal with DOE about
the federal |oan guarantee program and inplenentation. The
conm ssioner feels fairly confident in that relationship and
said the |oan guarantee is there for a contract that qualifies.
The use of |oan guarantees for cost overruns is not explicitly
stated in the statute, but they have determned that it is
al | owabl e.

MR. ROVER clarified the term “cost overrun” was termnol ogy used
by the federal governnent. \Wat the federal governnent provides
is a guarantee to a bank loan within the two year w ndow of the
start of the project. The guarantee nakes it easy to get a bank
or group of banks to provide funding knowing the federal
gover nnent backs up the | oan.

2:57:53 PM

MR. BLOOM added the l|language in the federal statute defining a
qualified project included “construction and conpletion of
pi pelines.” He said it seemed clear a guarantee of |oans
dedi cated towards construction conpletion was within the bounds
of the statute.

2:58:22 PM

SENATOR STEDVAN said cost overruns had come up previously as a
maj or concern. He said sone had participated in a mega-project
semnar with the admnistration a couple years ago and were told
20 percent cost overruns on megaprojects were normal and woul d
still be considered a success. He said it would be conceivable
to have a 30 to 50 percent overrun on a project of this
magni tude. He asked if that was a risk exposure to be concerned
about .

2:59: 14 PM

MR. BLOOM replied the project finance market was extrenely
sensitive to a nunmber of risks, construction and conpletion
par anount anong those. It is common for |large projects to have
substantial overruns. That is why Goldman Sachs believes TC s
proposal to preserve a portion of the federal |oan guarantee for

cost overruns will be extrenely conforting to the markets. It
was not clear in the proposal how nuch would be reserved, but
Gol dman Sachs suggests reserving as nuch as $16 billion of the
28 billion federal |oan capacity against cost overrun risk
3:01: 02 PM

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWM TTEES - 35- June 10, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER said he was concerned about the optimsm
he was hearing juxtaposed against the caution advised throughout
the witten report.

3:02: 26 PM

MR. ROMER answered it was difficult to summarize a hundred page
report on one page. They approached this analysis by |ooking at
the fundanental soundness by which the whole project is put
t oget her. An inplicit assunption was there were reasonable and
rational people operating on all sides. At one point in tine,
there was clear intent from the federal government that they
would step forward in a way to help this project succeed. I n
ol dman Sachs view the best role for the federal governnent to
play is in cost overruns.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER encouraged his colleagues to study the
report.

3:05:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS quoting the Black and Veatch “likelihood
of success” report said “in general, TransCanada s proposal does
not offer shippers strong protections fromcost overruns.”

3:07:01 PM
MR. ROMER said Black and Veatch could clarify the context of
that statenent. He said there was risk in every project and

their goal was to provide information so risks were understood.
He said he was not troubled by the Black and Veatch statenent
because shippers will weigh the risks and benefits and decide
whet her to participate based on an economc interest. A risk in
and of itself is not a problemunless it is put into a context
of the totality of the project and all associated costs and
benefits are wei ghed.

3:08: 37 PM
MR. BLOOM cl arified they were |ooking at the risks investors and
| enders woul d bear not specifically the shippers.

COM SSI ONER GALVIN said a future Black and Veatch presentation
addressed risk allocation issues and their inpacts. He said
cost overrun risk transfer was not a requirenent of AG A but was
one thing to consider as part of a likelihood of success. The
next presentation covers the inpact of cost overruns on
potential NPV to the producers.

3:10: 21 PM

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWM TTEES - 36- June 10, 2008



SENATOR STEDVAN reflected that there were a l|lot of concerns
about cost overruns on the previous proposal and substanti al
concern on this proposal. Gven the uncertainties of the risks
of a project of this magnitude, striking a bal ance between risk
allocations is likely to be critical in the ability to obtain
capital commtnents for the conpletion of the project.

3:12: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES said he wanted to go back to the question
of whether the project is financeable. He was concerned about
investors willing to commt to the project because the financial
nodel was specul ative. He wonders what the |ikelihood of
financing will be if the commtnment is two to 2.5 bcf and the
rest was specul ative.

3:15: 37 PM
MR. ROVER replied they |ooked at a nunber of alternatives and
did a variety of analytical sensitivity cases. They came up

with a conservative base case, did sone nore detailed analysis
and concluded that it was financeable. He said a better sense
of what can be built and what is affordable will cone at open
season.

3:16: 36 PM

COW SSIONER GALVIN said the information presented about the
opportunity for exploration and additional finds was not neant
to inply that was what was necessary to get the project to
sufficient capacity for financing.

3:17:56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES said he appreciated that clarification. He
said it seens all assunptions were built around a 4.5 bcf and
asked if there was enough flexibility in the AJA |egislation
for the project under different capacities.

3:18: 57 PM

COM SSIONER GALVIN replied TC said they wuld accomodate
everything from 3.5 bcf/day up through 5.6 or 5.9. Although the
so called “proposal” or “application base case” is 4.5 it was
exanm ned across a range of options to ensure its viability.

3:20:40 PM
REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER said he was still wary about the optimsm
versus the serious cautions presented in the report in addition
to construction conpletion, risk allocation to lenders, clarity
on reserves, and contract Ilength, +that had not yet been
addr essed.

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWM TTEES - 37- June 10, 2008



3:22:01 PM

MR. ROVER responded there are many large projects built which go
through their own evolutionary process. The ol dman Sachs
report outlines typical project financing and how projects
achi eve an investnent grade rating. He said they wanted to nake
sure the benefits and risks were understood. They feel they are
laying out the way things are when a big project is considered
whi ch can be perceived as cautionary. He said every project has
construction risk; the question is how the risk is nanaged. In
this case they |ooked at the sponsor, their experience and
capabilities for building pipelines, and at other nechanisnms in
pl ace such as access to capital and the federal |oan guarantee.
He said the best way to |look at this project was to conpare how
it has been done elsewhere, then identify the specific unique
features to this project and outline a way to mtigate risks.

REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER thanked M. Roner for his response and
said he agreed with it.

MR. ROMER said he wi shed he had a crystal ball but a decision
must be made based on the project and its fundanmental tenants
and whet her the sponsor can do what it needs to do.

3:26:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  RAMRAS  t hanked CGol dnman Sachs for their
participation and asked them to tal k about their conversations
with the FERC

MR. ROMER answered they had had no conversations with the FERC.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS asked him to talk about the risks
associated with Arctic gas projects globally.

MR ROVER replied they had looked at the project from a
financing perspective. He asked for clarification on the
guesti on.

3:.27:20 PM
REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS said he was interested in risks and cost
overruns associated with an Arctic gas project peer group.

3:28:02 PM
MR. ROMER suggested the question may be nore appropriate for an
engi neering or construction expert.

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWM TTEES - 38- June 10, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS said no, his question was about
construction and conpletion risks associated with Arctic gas
projects globally and identifying the peer group for this
particul ar project.

MR. ROVER said they |ooked at the project from a financing and

| endi ng perspective. The uni que nature of the project and use
of the federal I|oan guarantee, as set forth under the TC
proposal, led to the conclusion that access to capital to

conplete the project is likely.

3:30: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS said he was |ooking for a definition of
the peer group used for this particular project to assess the
construction and conpl etion risks.

MR. ROVER said he did not believe he was the right person to
answer the question since his firmlooked at the project from a
financi ng perspective.

CHAIR HUGA NS asked Representative Ranras to talk wth the
consultants during a break to get an answer to his question.

3:31:57 PM
REPRESENTATI VE KELLY asked if TC proposed a reasonably robust
proj ect .

MR. ROMVER replied the project had very sizeable NPV benefits to
the participants, good cash flow abilities so that debt would be
repaid, and an attractive return to the equity sponsors. The
firm |l ooked at TC and found the financial capacity and interest
to do the project.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY asked if cost overrun elenents would apply
to whonever built the project.

MR. ROMER replied yes.
REPRESENTATI VE KELLY asked if TCis a fourth quartile perforner.
MR. ROMER said he could not respond to quartiling.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY asked if 500 mllion was a reasonable
i nvestnment in the project.

3:35:45 PM

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWM TTEES - 39- June 10, 2008



SENATOR THOVAS asked if the |oan guarantee would provide a nore
favorabl e rate conpared to ot her debt noney.

MR. BLOOM answered yes because any |oans guaranteed by the
federal governnent trade close to the treasury rate. He said
bonds backed solely by the revenues of the project would be
rated sonmewhat | ower and would carry a higher interest cost.

SENATOR THOMAS asked if the federal |oan guarantee could be
applied to offsetting debts other than cost overruns.

MR. BLOOM replied it would depend on the actual terms of the
| oans, how they were structured and how the guarantee was
overl ai d. The nobst conservative analysis assunes the |[|oan
guarantee sits wi thout being used. As the project progresses an
i ndependent engineer hired by the bond trustee and the |enders
| ooks over the project from financing through conpletion. The

engineer wll inform |lenders, investors, and rating agencies
about construction risks and do conparisons against other
proj ects. As the project proceeds through construction, the

equity sponsors can nake a case to the engineer that sone of the
cost overrun capacity should be rel eased.

3:39: 05 PM

MR. BLOOM said as a project proceeds through construction the
ri sk abates and equity sponsors would seek to apply sonme of the
federal |oan guarantee preserved for overruns to ongoi ng project
costs. He does not see a circunstance where federal |oan
guarantee capacity would be left on the table.

MR. ROVER said another way to think about wusing the |oan
guarantee was as a way to refinance other debt that may be nore
expensi ve.

3:40: 18 PM
SENATOR THOVAS said he did not think anybody was planning to |et
t he cost overrun beyond what woul d be consi dered reasonabl e.

3:41: 28 PM
REPRESENTATIVE WLSON asked if the federal government had
i ndicated availability of the |oan guarantee.

COMM SSI ONER GALVIN replied no, DOE would articulate a position
after receiving a project discussion package. He said the State
must | ook at the entire package of risk profile to see the
inmpact of the l|oan guarantee on overall project viability.
Conmi ssioner Galvin believes it is mnore likely the federal

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWM TTEES - 40- June 10, 2008



government would prefer the |oan guarantee be held out for cost
overruns.

3:44:18 PM

MR. ROVER added the TC proposal to use the federal |oan
guarantee in this way was a novel idea, but there are other ways
to manage construction ri sk.

MR. ROMER continued to page 5 of the analysis. He said TC was a
| arge, stable conpany with very durable free cash flow Free
cash flow is very inportant because the conmpany will need to
provide an equity contribution at some point in the future.
ol dman Sachs concluded TC could neet that obligation and have
the financial capacity to do so. They also concluded this
pipeline has a very positive long term inpact and substanti al
financial benefit to TransCanada.

MR. ROMER said they al so exam ned whether TC could issue debt to
rai se the amount of noney needed for the project. Goldnman Sachs
beli eves they can, but rating agencies mght have sone concerns.
There is a risk that TCs ratings could be downgraded under
conpl ete debt borrow ng. He said it was also possible they
woul d not be a downgraded because TC had a lot of tinme to plan
and raise the capital in anticipation of the contributions they

will need to nake. Anot her issue is what exposures TC m ght
have, what is called “the trough.” He said the nost difficult
point in time for TC will be the construction process. Af ter

that the cash flow becones positive.

MR. ROMVER said TC s ability to contribute nore capital if there
was a cost overrun was al so considered. Goldman Sachs thinks TC
has the ability, but again, it could be a rating agency concern.
He said the federal |oan guarantee would help mtigate this

concern. In sunmary, he said TC was an “A’ rated conpany with a
strong investnent grade rating. Assets total about $30 billion
dollars and revenues about $9 billion. The conmpany has nuch

experience building pipelines and this project is core to their
m ssion and long term goals. He said not only do they have the
financial capacity, but the value and inportance of the project
to them is substantial, so they have incentive to nake the
proj ect succeed.

3:49: 05 PM
CHAIR HUGA NS referring to page 5 of “Financial Review of
TransCanada and Proposal (June 10, 2008),” asked M. Roner to
state the top three things TC could do to fortify its financia
strengths.

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWMM TTEES -41- June 10, 2008



MR ROVER replied TC wll need to anticipate the -equity

contributions they will need to nake to the project and start to
rai se that noney early. In the last two years TC has raised
over $8 billion capital dollars, both debt and equity, for

various projects and has denonstrated the capacity to raise
capital in substantial anounts.

3:50: 22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked M. Roner to describe how TC was
related to a subsidiary that was fornmed with a contingent
l[iability close to $10 billion dollars. The new company has no
assets so she wondered how that related financially to the
mar ket and the potential downgrade.

MR. ROVER said TC as a parent conpany did not have the assets of
the prior entity in which they were a partner so those assets
were not reflected in the assets or liabilities of TC

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH sai d she just heard TC was financially
sound and had | arge assets. She asked what the entity, entering
into a contract with the State, had in the formof assets.

3:51: 01 PM
MR. ROMER said he did not know the answer to that question.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH said she would like to know the
financial credibility of the TC subsidiary, which does not
appear to have any assets of its own.

3:52:46 PM

COMWM SIONER GALVIN replied TC had conmitted all necessary
resources of their corporation to TransCanada/ Al aska. He said
TC was analyzed to ensure all the necessary assets were

avai l abl e to finance the project.

3:53:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH said TC was involved with a subsidiary
with a contingent liability of about $10 billion dollars which
was not reflected in the financial information. She said TC
just went through an acquisition that has the financial markets
“sputtering a bit” and |ooking at downgrading. She asked why

the $10 billion dollars was not of concern and why it does not
affect TC s potential contingent liability and borrow ng
ability.

3:54: 22 PM

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWMM TTEES -42- June 10, 2008



COM SSI ONER GALVIN said the contingent liability issue was not
related to financial statenments or accounting nethods of
TransCanada Corporation or TransCanada/ Al aska. ol dman  Sachs
and outside counsel determined the liability was not a risk to
this project.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH stated it appeared the adm nistration
was unconcerned about the $10 billion dollar potenti al
contingent liability.

COW SSI ONER GALVI N said Goldman Sachs | ooked at the contingent
liability issue from a financial perspective, and G uman/ Charw g
(ph) reviewed liability and rate nmking tariff issues. Al
parties concluded the risk and exposure of the liability was not
necessarily an issue associated with the financing, potential
partnerships, tariff, and wultimtely, whether to issue a
i cense.

3:56: 08 PM
CHAIR HUGE NS asked Goldnan Sachs to respond to the issue
presented by Representative Faircl ough.

MR ROMER replied that contingent Iliability relating to the
partnership entity was not reflected in the balance sheets of
TC. He does not believe the TC accountants consolidated a
thirty year old partnership liability into their financial
statenents because they do not viewit as a true liability.

MR. ROMVER said TC has conmitted their full resources in order to
make the project a success. ol dman  Sachs | ooked at the
capacity of the parent conpany. He said it was comon for
conpani es to use subsidiaries.

MR. ROVER added TC was put on credit watch because they made a
commtrment to buy a power generation plant called Ravenswood; a
$2.6 billion dollar acquisition. He said it was very common
after the announcenent of an acquisition of that size for rating
agencies to announce they are going to take a closer |ook. He
believes Standard and Poor’'s has taken TC off <credit watch
because they denonstrated how they will finance the acquisition

He said Mdody's has not concluded their review But TC is an
“A” rated conpany, strong in conparison to worldw de pipeline
compani es. Gol dman Sachs is not concerned about “credit watch”
status because it is a normal course of action.

3:59: 08 PM

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWM TTEES - 43- June 10, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH appreciated clarification of her
guesti ons. She asked if TC was limting their liability by
formng this smaller subsidiary conpany.

COW SSINOR CGALVIN answered in general, vyes by formng a
subsidiary they do limt their liability other than to those
things specifically outlined as liabilities under the |icense.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH said she would still like to know how
much TC as the parent conpany is putting into the subsidiary
conpany. The State has not forned a subsidiary to limt its

liabilities, but has pledged the full faith and credit of the
State and all of the assets that cone under that unbrella.

CHAIR HUGA NS said Representative Fairclough brought up an

excellent point and the question will be stated in witing to
the admnistration who will work with their experts to get an
answer .

4:00: 37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said he was trying to decide whether the
| oan guarantee was an issue that should concern him He is not
worried about TC seeking out and using the best credit possible
and there is a requirement under AG A that the project be

financed with at |east 70 percent debt. He does not believe TC
would willingly give up a debt instrunment that is valuable to
them and if the |oan guarantee cannot be used for cost overruns
it wll be used el sewhere. The State's protection is the tariff
is kept low by the I oan. If TC decides to reject a |oan
guarantee that absolves them of any Iliability that is their
busi ness.

4:02: 01 PM

MR. ROVER said Representative Gara s assessnent was generally
correct. The value of a loan guarantee is it reduces the cost
of debt which is beneficial to the project. There is no reason

to think TC would not seek to maxinm ze the use of that |oan
guar ant ee.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked if there were any concerns about the
| oan guar ant ee.

MR. ROMVER said from Gol dnan Sachs perspective the legislation is
clear and the |loan guarantee was avail able. It wll be
necessary to outline details with the DCE before the guarantee
i s issued.

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWMM TTEES -44- June 10, 2008



4:03:56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS said there was w de speculation that no
gas will be nomnated during the open season anticipated in
twelve to eighteen nonths. He asked what exposure the State may
be subject to given TC s participation in other projects, and
what rights the State has to protect itself fromrisk from the
conpany maki ng poor deci sions.

4. 05: 20 PM

MR. ROVER said Gol dman Sachs | ooked at TC s current capacity and
capabilities. He said TC has denonstrated the ability to raise
substantial anmounts of capital to fund their growh strategy

It is also inportant to look at the inportance of this project
to them Goldman Sachs |ooked at four different ways TC could
come up with the capital and the way they mght do it. After
devel opi ng those hypothetical’'s they examned how TC s incone
and bal ance statenent mght |ook, and it |ooked very attractive.
TC has shareholders to which they are accountable and they need
to operate in a way to preserve their capacity to deliver

4:06: 59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS said the same could be said of |ooking at
the past performance of Gty Bank, Wchovia, Lehman Brothers,
etc. He said there was little certainty and if gas was not
nom nated into an open season he questioned the risk el enment.

4:07: 32 PM

MR. ROMER responded that Goldman Sachs |ooked at other big
project financing done around the world in different sizes and
| ocales and the fundanental financing credits. He does not
believe it is fair to draw corollaries between financia
institutions and a pipeline conpany. A pipeline conpany and the
nature of the business are evaluated differently and the risks
are nuch different. G obal energy markets and the Canadian
mar ket analysis is also relevant when |ooking at risks. In
ol dman/ Sach’s opinion TransCanada’s conpetencies and current
financial situation prove they can performthe project.

4:10: 02 PM

SENATOR STEDVAN said as AG A evolved the viability of |I|oan
guar ant ees cane up. He asked for Gol dnman/ Sach’s opinion on the
viability of loan guarantees if Exxon or BP bid on the gas and
if these | oan guarantees would be of any interest to a firmthe
si ze of Exxon. He al so asked if Exxon would be able to secure
cheaper financing wthout the | oan guarantee.

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWM TTEES -45- June 10, 2008



MR. ROMER said energy and oil narkets are doing great but he
believed the federal governnent was doing a little better. He
said having the federal governnment willing to shoul der some risk
and provide access to low cost capital can lead to a |ower
tariff and nore successful project.

SENATOR STEDMAN clarified his question with Exxon as the
bui | der .

4:12:50 PM
MR. ROMER replied as a builder having the capital available to
pay your bills was essential. He said if the project conpany

had access to |oans backed by the federal governnment he would
sl eep better at night.

SENATOR STEDVMAN said he was looking for a marginal benefit.
Exxon, an extrenely large, well run, efficient conpany didn't
express nuch interest in the |oan guarantees. He is not sure
there is a lot of financial difference between Exxon and the
U. S. governnent.

MR. ROMER said Exxon was very large, substantial, highly rated
entity that has deep pockets and access to capital. But, he does
not think Exxon borrows at the sane interest rate as the federal
gover nnment . He does not have the answer to how capital
guaranteed by the bal ance sheet of Exxon conpares to the federal
| oan guarantee. He said he could not answer how producers would
value the loan guarantee, but from his perspective U S
government backing is valuable and highly coveted in the
mar ket pl ace. The guarantee creates liquidity and benefit to the

| enders because of the extra certainty of repaynent. Producers
m ght | ook at the guarantee and determi ne maybe it has val ue
maybe it does not. As business people, they wll do a

cost/benefit analysis and | ook at costs with or without the | oan
guar ant ee.

4:16:19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES said he was I|ess concerned about TC
finances than if the project itself was financeable. He assuned
this analysis was done prior to the announcenent by BP and
Conoco Phillips of the Denali projects. He said there was al so
a conpeting project on the Canadian side of the border in the
McKenzi e vall ey. He said Robert J. Reid, who was with TC for
thirty-three years before he becane president of the Aborigina

Pi peline Goup, was concerned that the Al aska pipeline would
“kill” the MKenzie Valley project if it got started first. He
asked if financing paranmeters would change knowing there are

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWM TTEES - 46- June 10, 2008



conpeting pipelines having a direct inpact on the viability of
this project.

MR ROMER said a fundanental tenant to the success of the
financing was shippers showing up in the open season. He does
not have expertise in global conpetitive markets and supply and
demand characteristics of gas. He thinks the question has to do
with the value and price of gas because of conpeting projects.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES added his concern was also wth cost
overruns. The longer the project is delayed the nore potentia
for higher costs. He said M. Rolheiser fromInperial Gl also
coormented that if both pipelines got going at the sanme tine
costs would significantly increase on both projects because of
supply and demand and | abor needed. Representati ve Roses asked
if M. Romer agreed that attention nust be paid to nonitoring
t he progress of pipelines in Canada.

MR. ROVER said he could not add further to what he had already
said. Ohers have | ooked at the econom c supply/demand features
within North America and gl obally.

4:20: 26 PM
MR. ROVER said Gol dman Sachs covered the key highlights of their
report and woul d answer any ot her questi ons.

4:20:50 PM

COM SSI ONER GALVI N said risk assessnment had al so been added to
the agenda and a slide on this topic was in the Black and Veatch
NPV anal ysi s.

CHAIR HUGGE NS asked that copies of the slide be nade for the
menbers.

COM SSI ONER GALVIN said the information was in the packet on

pages 14 and 18. The information shown includes various risk
sensitivities for the State and producer, NPV associated wth
pri ce, cost escal ati on, percentage assunptions, schedul e

tinelines, <capital <costs and overruns. He also asked for
clarification that his experts would be able to participate in
di scussi ons on “FERC Day” in Anchorage.

CHAIR HUGA NS replied he would discuss those details separately
wi th Comm ssioner Gl vin.

4:23:32 PM

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWMM TTEES -47- June 10, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said he wanted to state for the record
that his questions about financing issues were no reflection on
TC as a corporation but about the risks that would effect any
project. As pointed out in the presentation rating agencies say
t he biggest challenge facing TC right now is the need for nore
gas. He said the report showed a decline of 2.5 “B" a day
bet ween now and 2020. Moody and Standard and Poor’s identify
the increasing supply risk as the key weaknesses to the
entities. He asked what the consequences may be for TC should
t hey not be invol ved.

4:26: 58 PM

MR. ROVER said this project obviously was valuable to TC, but if
they were not involved they would probably pursue a nunber of
projects built into their business strategy.

4:28: 47 PM

COWMWM SI ONER GALVI N added that AG A was set up to enabl e soneone
to cone forward with a proposal so the State could take contro
of moving the project ahead under favorable terns to the State.
TC canme forward, he said. He questioned the relevancy of
whet her or not TC was otherwise notivated to nove this project
ahead. He thinks recognition of the viability of the project
outside of TC s proposal is in order. The analysis shows the
project is financeable and sonething the markets would enbrace
and bring forward to fruition.

4:31:42 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS said he disagreed wth Conm ssioner
Galvin that the question was not relevant. Lesa Adair of Muise

Stancil was asked specifically how badly the corporation would
be hurt if .5 “B” of gas did not get into their system He said
her nodels showed it would hurt but not break the back of the
cor porati on. He thinks it is an extrenely relevant question in
terms of |everage. He also asked how nmany of the current
shippers were also the shippers on the reduced capacity in the
TC l'ine.

4:33:44 PM
CHAIR HUGA NS said sone of these concerns would be addressed in
summat i ons when returning to Juneau.

4:34: 00 PM
SENATOR THERRI AULT said LNG or gas projects being developed in
Northern latitudes Iike Norway have run into construction

problens. He asked with TC in particular, if the risk was |ower
t echnol ogi cal | y.

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWM TTEES - 48- June 10, 2008



MR. SPARCER said a LNG facility project was inherently riskier
than an overland pipe. R sk is not really reduced because the
pi pe is reduced.

[ SB 3001 and HB 3001 were held in commttee.]

4:37:57 PM
CHAI R HUGGE NS adj ourned t he neeting.

JT. SENR/ HRLS COWM TTEES - 49- June 10, 2008



